
 

 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Iau, 12 Gorffennaf 2012  

 

Amser: 
13:15 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Deddfwriaeth: Fay Buckle 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8041 
HSCCommittee@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon (13:15)  

2. Bil Sgorio Hylendid Bwyd (Cymru): Cyfnod 1 - Sesiwn dystiolaeth 
3 (13:15 - 14:00) (Tudalennau 1 - 9)  
Ffederasiwn Busnesau Bach 
Iestyn Davies – Pennaeth Materion Allanol, Ffederasiwn Busnesau Bach Cymru 
Mike Jones, Aelod o Ffederasiwn Busnesau Bach Cymru  
Dean Bolton, Aelod o Ffederasiwn Busnesau Bach Cymru 
HSC(4)-22-12(p1)  

3. Bil Sgorio Hylendid Bwyd (Cymru): Cyfnod 1 - Sesiwn dystiolaeth 
3 (14:00 - 15:00) (Tudalennau 10 - 16)  
Sefydliad Siartredig Iechyd yr Amgylchedd 
Julie Barratt – Cyfarwyddwr Sefydliad Siartredig Iechyd yr Amgylchedd (Cymru) 
HSC(4)-22-12(p2) 
 
Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru 
Dr Marion Lyons – Cyfarwyddwr Diogelu Iechyd, Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru  
HSC(4)-22-12(p3) 
  

4. Bil Sgorio Hylendid Bwyd (Cymru): Cyfnod 1 - Trafod y 
dystiolaeth (15:00 - 15:30)  

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



Health and Social Care Committee 
Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill 
FHR 19 – The Federation of Small Businesses in Wales (FSB Wales) 

 

 

Food Hygiene 

Rating (Wales) 

Bill 

Submission to 

the Health and 

Social Care 

Committee 

29
th

 June 2012 

 

Eitem 2

Tudalen 1



 

2 

 

Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill 
 

The Federation of Small Businesses in Wales 

 

The Federation of Small Businesses Wales welcomes the opportunity to present its views to the 

National Assembly’s Health and Social Care Committee on the Welsh Government’s Food Hygiene 

Rating (Wales) Bill. FSB Wales is the authoritative voice of small businesses in Wales. With 10,000 

members, a Welsh Policy Unit, two regional committees and twelve branch committees; FSB Wales 

is in constant contact with small businesses at a grassroots level.  It undertakes a monthly online 

survey of its members as well as an annual membership survey on a wide range of issues and 

concerns facing small business. 

 

Executive Summary 

 

• FSB Wales’ submission to the Welsh Government’s consultation on the draft Food Hygiene Rating 

(Wales) Bill was informed by a focus group of FSB Wales members. The members welcome moves 

towards greater food safety and have largely positive experiences of the voluntary scheme. 

 

• The Welsh Government should carefully examine whether there is a need to create additional 

legislation to place a statutory obligation on local authorities to participate in the scheme in light 

of the fact that all local authorities in Wales at present operate the voluntary scheme.  

 

• FSB Wales questions the Welsh Government’s Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA) with regards 

to the Bill as introduced, particularly around the decision to extend the scheme to business to 

business trade.  FSB Wales does not dispute the Welsh Government’s ability to introduce 

regulatory legislation where necessary. Neither does it have no regard for the intention to 

safeguard public health through the imposition of statutory requirements upon its members and 

other businesses. However, as a matter of best practice FSB Wales is of the considered opinion 

that regulatory impact assessments must be robust and provide an evidence base that proves the 

need to legislate and that in this case the public health will safeguarded and advanced. It is not 

clear that such an evidence base exists or that an appropriately robust regulatory impact 

assessment has taken place with regards to the Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill.  

 

• FSB Wales welcomes the amendments to the Draft Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill around the 

right of reply, the right of appeal and the ability of food establishments to apply for a re-rating. 

However, certain issues around the timescales and costs involved should be reconsidered to 

ensure that the legislation is not overly onerous to small businesses.  

 

• FSB Wales calls on the Welsh Government to issue strong guidance to Food Authorities and 

businesses to ensure that there is adequate awareness of the impact of the legislation. The FSA 

should be encouraged to promote the scheme to businesses in a way that enables them to 

reproduce best practice and achieve satisfactory ratings. Should the money raised from Fixed 

Penalty Notices be hypothecated for food safety issues as the Bill suggests then FSB Wales 

believes that the priority should be on raising awareness of good practice amongst food 

establishments. 

 

 

Tudalen 2



 

3 

 

Introduction 

 

The Health and Social Care Committee will be aware that FSB Wales submitted evidence to the 

Welsh Government’s consultation in advance of the current bill being introduced to the National 

Assembly. Please see the enclosed copy for ease of reference.  

 

In this submission, FSB Wales will develop on some of the observations made to the Welsh 

Government previously in light of the amendments already made to the bill and highlight areas of 

concern that remain for FSB Wales members. 

 

 

Regulatory Impact Assessment 

 

FSB Wales is concerned that the Welsh Government has not appropriately applied a Regulatory 

Impact Assessment to the Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill as introduced. The Welsh Government’s 

stated objectives in the Regulatory Impact Assessment are as follows
1
: 

 

1. creating a compulsory FHRS for food businesses in Wales;    

2. placing a duty on local authorities to operate the scheme (broadly speaking, this means to 

carry out all of the activities which they currently undertake voluntarily in relation to the 

FSA scheme);  

3. placing a duty on food business operators to display their food hygiene ratings in a 

designated position at their establishment while giving them rights of appeal and a right 

of reply similar to those in relation to the FSA voluntary scheme; and 

4. making it an offence for food business operators to fail to display their food hygiene 

ratings in the manner prescribed under the scheme or to tamper with or falsify those 

ratings. 

 

Clearly, the Bill as introduced will satisfy the objectives outlined above; however it is questionable 

whether legislation is the best means of achieving this. For example, all local authorities at present 

take part in the voluntary scheme and are committed to do so for the foreseeable future highlighting 

the need for further examination as to the need to legislate to oblige them to do so
2
.  

 

Furthermore, much of the evidence base relied upon in the regulatory impact assessment rests on 

analysis undertaken by the FSA between September and October 2011
3
. FSB Wales is mindful that 

the current scheme in Wales has only been in operation since October 2010 and believes it would be 

beneficial for the evidence base to be further debated in the public domain in order to ascertain 

                                                           
1
 Welsh Government. 2012. Draft Regulatory Impact Assessment: Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill [Online]. 

Available at: http://wales.gov.uk/docs/phhs/consultation/111214impacten.pdf (accessed 28th June 2012). 
2
 Members’ Research Service. 2012. Bill Summary: Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill [Online]. Available at: 

http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/research/bus-assembly-research-publications/research-

constitution/12-029.pdf?langoption=3&ttl=Food%20Hygiene%20Rating%20%28Wales%29%20Bill%20-

%20Bill%20Summary%20paper (accessed 28
th

 June 2012). 
3
 FSA. 2011. The Display of Food Hygiene Rating Wales [Online]. Available at: 

http://www.foodbase.org.uk//admintools/reportdocuments/732-1-1244_FHRS_Report-13_December_2011_-

_FINAL.pdf (accessed 28th June 2012).  

Tudalen 3



 

4 

 

whether legislation is needed to further develop food hygiene measures
4
. Increasing the regulatory 

burden on small businesses should be considered only if there is no other means by which to 

increase the potency of the current voluntary scheme. 

 

 

Inclusion of business to business trade 

 

The stated objectives of the Welsh Government during the consultation on the draft Food Hygiene 

Rating (Wales) Bill were to move the voluntary scheme to a mandatory basis, whilst compelling food 

operators to display their ratings. FSB Wales notes paragraphs 39 and 40 of the Explanatory 

Memorandum that state;  

 

“The Welsh Government proposes that the mandatory scheme should be modelled on the 

voluntary scheme...Because the existing scheme is operating well, and because of the high level of 

costs for developing and implementing a new scheme, the Welsh Government decided very early 

on that the main components of the voluntary scheme would – wherever possible - be replicated 

in the mandatory scheme.”
5
. 

 

At present, business to business trade does not come under the remit of the voluntary scheme. FSB 

Wales notes the Welsh Government’s decision to include this in the scope of the Bill as introduced 

and the Minister for Health stated during plenary
6
; 

 

“The Bill also requires those establishments involved in food business-to-business trade to be 

included in the scope of the scheme. These are businesses that produce, process or prepare food 

and include food manufacturers, wholesalers and transporters. Establishments involved in food 

business-to-business trade are currently not rated under the voluntary FSA scheme. However, I 

want to ensure that this Bill covers as wide a range of food businesses as possible, including those 

supplying food to our schools and hospitals.” 

 

Clearly, the inclusion of business to business trade within the scope of the Bill constitutes a 

significant departure from the original objectives of the Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill which 

sought to place the existing scheme onto a mandatory basis. As such, FSB Wales believes that the 

inclusion of business to business trade has not properly been considered as part of the Regulatory 

Impact Assessment.  

 

                                                           
4
 Members’ Research Service. 2012. Bill Summary: Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill [Online]. Available at: 

http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/research/bus-assembly-research-

publications/researchconstitution/12-

029.pdf?langoption=3&ttl=Food%20Hygiene%20Rating%20%28Wales%29%20Bill%20-

%20Bill%20Summary%20paper (accessed 28
th

 June 2012).  
5
 Welsh Government. 2012. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Explanatory Memorandum [Online]. Available at: 

http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/bus-business-fourth-assembly-laid-docs/pri-ld8916-em-

e.pdf?langoption=3&ttl=PRI-LD8916-EM%20-%20Food%20Hygiene%20Rating%20%28Wales%29%20Bill%20-

%20Explanatory%20Memorandum (accessed 28
th

 June 2012).  
6
 Record of Proceedings 29 May 2012. Introduction of the Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill [Online]. Available 

at: http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/bus-chamber-fourth-assembly-

rop.htm?act=dis&id=234781&ds=5%2F2012#dat4 (accessed 29
th

 June 2012).  

Tudalen 4



 

5 

 

During our consultation exercise, many of our members highlighted concerns around the costs of 

implementing such a scheme on business to business trade, stating that costs would likely be 

transferred to the retailer and ultimately the customer
7
. FSB Wales members believe that the focus 

of the food rating exercise should be on the point of sale to the customer. Should the Bill proceed in 

its current format, there may be unintended consequences that have not been properly considered 

as a result of the inclusion of business to business trade. FSB Wales believes the Welsh Government 

has a duty to ensure such matters are considered when taking the decision to increase the 

regulatory burden on small businesses. As a result, the FSB Cannot give unequivocal support to the 

proposed Bill. 

 

The Regulatory Impact Assessment should also consider the implications of including business to 

business trade on wholesalers and related businesses. It is important to recognise that many 

businesses in Wales will be supplied from companies operating across the UK and the EU that will 

not fall under the remit of the legislation. This could impede the Welsh Government’s stated 

objectives with regards to food hygiene whilst placing Wales based wholesalers at a competitive 

disadvantage.  

 

Given the National Assembly’s new powers to legislate for Wales, FSB Wales hopes that the Welsh 

Government and the National Assembly will ensure all proposed legislation is carefully considered 

before its introduction. The appropriate use of Regulatory Impact Assessments is fundamental in this 

respect.  

 

 

Right of appeal 

 

FSB Wales welcomes the changes made by the Welsh Government around the right of food 

operators to appeal rating decisions. Many FSB Wales members highlighted the need for the time 

period to be reflective of the limited time available to small businesses to deal with administrative 

issues. FSB Wales also welcomes subsection 5(7) of the Bill as introduced that states; “The appeal 

must be determined by an authorised officer who was not involved in the assessment of the food 

hygiene rating that is being appealed”
8
. This is largely reflective of comments received from FSB 

Wales members on this issue around the inconsistency of food authority officers in providing a 

rating.  

 

Whilst welcoming the extension of time allotted to the appeals process, FSB Wales believes that 

food authorities should be responsive in dealing with appeals in order to resolve operator appeals in 

good time. Of particular importance is the increase from 7 days to 21 days of the time in which a 

food authority must determine the appeal and notify the operator of a food establishment.  For 

example, 21 days for both the appellant and the food authority to examine an appeal effectively 

                                                           
7
 FSB Wales. 2012. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: written submission to the Welsh Government [Online]. 

Available at: 

http://www.fsb.org.uk/policy/rpu/wales/assets/policy%20documents/food%20hygiene%20rating%20(wales)%

20bill%20%20-%207th%20march%202012.pdf (accessed 26
th

 June 2012) 
8
 Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill. As introduced. (2011-12) [Online]. Available at: 

http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/bus-business-fourth-assembly-laid-docs/pri-ld8916-

e.pdf?langoption=3&ttl=PRI-LD8916%20-%20Food%20Hygiene%20Rating%20%28Wales%29%20Bill (accessed 

26
th

 June 2012) 

Tudalen 5



 

6 

 

creates a 42 day process. This could be significant for small businesses, particularly those in seasonal 

sectors, and FSB Wales calls for the appeals process to be as efficient as possible.   

 

 

Right of Reply 

 

The draft Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill included in subsection 9(2)
9
 a time limit for the right to 

reply by food operators: 

Any comment must be made to a food authority –  

(a) Within 28 days of receipt of notification of the food hygiene rating if no appeal is made, 

or  

(b) Within 14 days of notification of the determination of the appeal.  

 

FSB Wales welcomes the changes to the Bill as introduced around the right to reply with the reduced 

section 10
10

 enabling operators to comment on their rating while it is valid. While the right to reply is 

to be welcomed, it should be noted that subsequent improvements made by the food operator will 

not be visually obvious to the consumer without the establishment carrying out a re-rating process.  

 

 

Re-rating of establishments 

 

The ability to apply for a re-rating is an important one for small businesses and provides an 

opportunity for improvements to the establishment to be recognised. FSB Wales welcomes the 

additional clarification provided by the Bill as introduced. However, FSB Wales feels that the 

obligation for a food authority to re-rate an establishment within three months under subsection 

11(7) should be considered in greater detail
11

. Three months is a significant period of time for a food 

operator and would put significant pressure on the food operator’s reputation and competitiveness 

and could have unintended consequences for the viability of the business.   

 

Furthermore, FSB Wales welcomes the addition of subsection 12(2) in the Bill as introduced which 

states; “Before carrying out the re-rating, the food authority must inform the operator of the costs of 

the re-rating and the way the costs have been calculated”
12

. FSB Wales agrees that it is important for 

food operators to be fully aware of the cost implications of the re-rating process. FSB Wales believes 

that the calculation of costs relating to the re-rating process should be the result of strong Welsh 

Government guidelines in order to avoid the situation whereby a local authority is incentivised to 

use re-rating inspections as a means to go beyond simple cost recovery.  

 

                                                           
9
 Draft Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill. (2011-12). [Online]. Available at: 

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/phhs/consultation/111214billen.pdf (accessed 26th June 2012) 
10

 Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill. As introduced. (2011-12) [Online]. Available at: 

http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/bus-business-fourth-assembly-laid-docs/pri-ld8916-

e.pdf?langoption=3&ttl=PRI-LD8916%20-%20Food%20Hygiene%20Rating%20%28Wales%29%20Bill (accessed 

26
th

 June 2012) 
11

 ibid 
12

 ibid 

Tudalen 6



 

7 

 

Subsection 12(4) of the Bill as introduced states “A food authority may require payment in advance 

of the re-rating being carried out”
13

. FSB Wales is concerned that payment mechanisms for the re-

rating of food establishments as a result of the Bill would not be sufficiently flexible in taking into 

account the often difficult cash flow needs of small businesses. It is important that food authorities 

work with local businesses that may have spent significant sums on improving their premises and 

dealing with the reputational side effects of a poor rating, in order to manage the cost recovery 

process in a way that doesn’t penalise acquiescence.  

 

 

Fixed penalty notices 

 

The use of fixed penalty notices as a means of punishing an offence was widely accepted in our 

consultation with FSB Wales members on this issue. However, it is important that, where used, fixed 

penalty notices are proportionate. As such, FSB Wales welcomes the ability to pay a discounted 

penalty of £150 within a period of 14 days.  

 

Subsection 21(2) of the Bill as introduced highlights the Welsh Ministers’ capacity to retain fixed 

penalty receipts for the purpose of improving food hygiene in Wales
14

. FSB Wales does not object to 

the use of the fixed penalty notice in this manner, but would suggest that if the money were to be 

hypothecated, it could be used to raise awareness amongst small businesses of good practice. 

 

 

Duties of the Food Standards Agency 

 

The inclusion in paragraph 13(e) of the Bill as introduced of the duty of the FSA to; “promote the 

scheme to food business establishments and consumers in Wales” is to be welcomed
15

. However, FSB 

Wales believes there is scope in the Bill to strengthen the duties of the FSA beyond simply promoting 

the scheme to actively highlighting good practice to businesses in order to better enable them to 

achieve satisfactory ratings.  

 

 

Guidance for businesses 

 

Finally, as mentioned above, it is crucial that businesses are aware of the changes that the Bill 

proposes. FSB Wales calls on the Welsh Government to provide guidance to small businesses 

affected by this scheme in a timely manner. The overall objective of the scheme should be to ensure 

that good practice in food hygiene is rewarded. Therefore, guidance from the Welsh Government 

should encourage small businesses to achieve the best possible rating.  

 

 

                                                           
13

 ibid 
14

 ibid 
15

 ibid 

Tudalen 7



 

8 

 

Conclusion 

 

FSB Wales believes that the Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill as introduced requires greater 

regulatory impact assessment to ascertain the likely implications for small businesses of the 

inclusion of business to business trade within the remit of Bill. The inclusion of business to business 

trade constitutes a divergence in direction from the Welsh Government’s original stated aims 

around the introduction of a Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill that would move the voluntary 

scheme to a mandatory basis.  

 

FSB Wales welcomes adaptations around the right of reply, right of appeal and re-ratings procedures 

but believes further examination of their costs to small businesses and the timescales involved is 

needed.  

 

Finally, FSB Wales would like to see the Welsh Government produce strong guidance in advance of 

the legislation coming into force to ensure that small businesses are aware and able to achieve the 

highest rating possible. The Food Standards Agency has a significant role to play in creating adequate 

guidance and fixed penalty notice receipts should help finance this.  

 

FSB Wales hopes you find these comments of interest and looks forward to discussing them further 

with the committee.  

 

 

Tudalen 8



 

9 

 

Contact: 

 

Federation of Small Businesses  

WALES OFFICE 

1 Cleeve House 

Lambourne Crescent 

Llanishen 

CARDIFF CF14 5GP 

 

Telephone: 029 2074 7406 

Email: policy.wales@fsb.org.uk 

Web: www.fsb.org.uk/wales  

 

 

The Federation of Small Businesses 

 

The FSB is non-profit making and non-party political. The Federation of Small Businesses is the 

UK's largest campaigning pressure group promoting and protecting the interests of the self-

employed and owners of small firms. Formed in 1974, it now has 200,000 members across 33 

regions and 194 branches. 

 

Lobbying 

Our lobbying arm - led by the Westminster Press and Parliamentary office - applies pressure on MPs, 

Government and Whitehall and puts the FSB viewpoint over to the media. The FSB also has Press 

and Parliamentary Offices in Glasgow, Cardiff and Belfast to lobby the devolved assemblies. 

Development Managers work alongside members in our regions to further FSB influence at a 

regional level. 

 

Member Benefits 

In addition, Member Services is committed to delivering a wide range of high quality, good value 

business services to members of the FSB. These services will be subject to continuing review and will 

represent a positive enhancement to the benefit of membership of the Leading Business 

Organisation in the UK. 

 

Vision 

A community that recognises, values and adequately rewards the endeavours of those who are self 

employed and small business owners within the UK 

 

The Federation of Small Businesses is the trading name of the National Federation of Self Employed 

and Small Businesses Limited. Our registered office is Sir Frank Whittle Way, Blackpool Business 

Park, Blackpool, Lancashire, FY4 2FE. Our company number is 1263540 and our Data Protection Act 

registration number is Z7356876. We are a non-profit making organisation and we have registered 

with the Information Commissioner on a voluntary basis. 

 

Associate Companies 

We have two associated companies, FSB (Member Services) Limited (company number 02875304 

and Data Protection Act registration number Z7356601) and NFSE Sales Limited (company number 

01222258 and Data Protection Act registration number Z7315310). 

Tudalen 9



Health and Social Care Committee 
Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill 
FHR 2 – Chartered Institute of Environmental Health Wales 
 
The Chartered Institute of Environmental Health (CIEH) is please to provide 
this evidence to the Welsh Government Health and Social Services Committee 
to inform its scrutiny of the Food Hygiene Rating Scheme Bill currently before 
it, and trusts that our comments will be of assistance. 
 
We will address the questions asked in the order of raising before adding any 
further comments we consider may assist the Committee. 
 
 
1 Is there a need for a Bill to introduce a statutory food hygiene rating 
scheme in Wales? Please explain your answer. 
 
In the view of the CIEH it is necessary for the Food Hygiene Rating Scheme 
(FHRS) to be statutory for it to operate successfully. Whilst the FHRS 
operating on voluntary basis has had some impact it has not been 
completely successful in achieving the ambitions for the scheme.  
 
To operate successfully for consumers the FHRS needs all food premises 
selling food to the public to participate so that potential customers can make 
an informed decision about where to purchase food by comparing the 
ratings of all of the food premises they are considering visiting. To operate 
successfully for food business operators those operators gaining a high 
score should see some commercial advantage over those with a poor score, 
in that customers would favour premises displaying a higher score over 
those displaying a lower score. This in turn would be a driver for lower 
scoring premises to improve their standards  and thereby improve their 
hygiene rating, and in doing so reduce any potential risk to consumers. 
 
As noted we do consider that the voluntary scheme has been successful in 
part, however a number of things have contributed to it not been completely 
successful. They are 
 

a. The fact that where premises have received a low rating when 
inspected they have elected not to display their low score. Failing to 
display a rating means that the consumer is not informed about 
conditions prevailing in the premises and further that the business is 
not at the commercial disadvantage that it should be when compared 
to similar premises in it immediate locality displaying a high rating. 

b. Where premises receive and chose not to display a rating the consumer 
is unable to determine whether the premises has not been inspected 
for rating purposes and therefore does not have a rating to display, or 
whether the premises has a rating but has elected not to display it. In 
either event the consumer does not have the benefit of the rating to 
assist them in making purchasing choices. 

c. We have anecdotal evidence that some of the larger retailers in Wales 
have made policy decision not to display the ratings that they have 
received for their premises irrespective of the ratings awarded. We are 
advised that this is due to them appreciating that should premises 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 10



 

receive a low rating customers will not chose to purchase food from 
them, and whilst they would be content to display a ‘good’ rating they 
do not wish to compromise their position by displaying a ‘bad’ one. 
Rather than make a decision such as ‘We will not display scores of 
Rating 3 or below’ which would be viewed as a cynical manipulation of 
the scheme they have chosen instead not to display scores on any of 
their premises. As discussed in (b) such a stance is not helpful to 
consumers and undermines the purpose of the scheme. 

 
 It is our view that it is necessary, if the FHRS is to operate successfully for it 
to have its basis in statute so that all of those premises that are in the 
scheme are obliged to display their FHR. Anything less than this has the 
effect of undermining the scheme. 
 
 
2. Do you think the Bill, as drafted, delivers the stated objectives as set 
out in the Explanatory Memorandum? Please explain your answer.  
 
The CIEH believes that the Bill, as drafted does deliver the stated objectives 
as set out in the Explanatory Memorandum. 
 
The Welsh Government’s objectives as set out in the Programme for 
Government in September 2011 seek to prevent poor health and reduce 
health inequalities. The FHRS as set out in the Bill should have the effect of 
driving up hygiene standards through business –v- business competition 
and in doing so should contribute to a reduction in the risk of food 
poisoning by embedding higher hygiene standards.  
 
By extending the FHRS to cover schools, hospitals and nursing homes the Bill 
also addresses inequalities in that it extends the regime to those premises 
which supply food to consumers who have little or no choice about where 
the food they eat comes from, and puts them on the same footing as 
customers who are free to chose by making the same information, and by 
extension the same protection available to them. 
 
The Bill addresses the inequality that exists between the statutory regulator, 
who has information about hygiene standards that existed at the time of an 
inspection and the customer and potential consumer of the food made in the 
premises by making that information available to the consumer in an easily 
understood and readily accessible way. 
 
It further addresses the commercial inequality that exists between good and 
complaint businesses and poor or noncompliant businesses by ensuing that 
those that operate to good standards have visible recognition of this that 
should be to the commercial advantage of the business.  
 
3. Are the sections of the Bill appropriate in terms of introducing a 
statutory food hygiene rating scheme in Wales? If not, how does the Bill 
to need to change?  

Tudalen 11



 

 
The CIEH has had a high level of engagement both with the ‘Scores on the 
Doors’ Scheme and then the FHRS when operated as a voluntary scheme in 
wales and further has engaged with the steering group working with Welsh 
Government officials in the drawing up of the Bill. We believe that the 
sections of the Bill introducing the FHRS on a statutory basis  
are appropriate and that there is no need for them to be changed. 
 
4. How will the proposed Measure change what organisations do 
currently and what impact will such changes have, if any?  
 
Clearly there will be a new duty imposed on food authorities to inspect the 
food businesses in their administrative areas for the purposes of rating them 
in accordance with the scheme, and in some cases to entertain and 
determine appeals against the rating awarded and to carry out re- 
inspections of the premises should the same be required. The initial 
inspection should not have a major impact since it is already a requirement 
under existing food hygiene legislation that premises are inspected, however 
the requirement to consider and determine appeals and to carry out re-
rating inspections where appropriate will be an additional burden on food 
authorities. Whilst CIEH notes that there will be an impact from this 
additional level of engagement we are not in a position to comment about 
what impact this will have on food authorities.  
 
It will be necessary for the FSA Wales to display all of the ratings awarded to 
each premises on their web site, however this should not have a significant 
impact as the ratings that are currently awarded as part of the voluntary 
scheme are uploaded onto that web site.  
 
 
5. What are the potential barriers to implementing the provisions of the 
Bill (if any) and does the Bill take account of them?  
 
The potential barriers to implementing the provisions of the Bill are as 
discussed in our response to Q1, notably the failure of businesses to display 
their ratings so that the public can see what rating the business has been 
awarded. In the view of the CIEH this issue is adequately addressed in  Sec 
9(1) of the Bill. 
 
With the requirement to display the FHR we can see the potential for 
business owners to either display a false rating or deliberately seek to 
confuse customers my amending ort defacing a Rating such that it cannot 
easily be read or understood. We are of the view that the provisions of 
section 9(3) of the Bill adequately address this potential issue. 
 
6. What are your views on powers in the Bill for Welsh Ministers to make 
subordinate legislation? (i.e. statutory instruments, including 
regulations, orders and directions) 
 

Tudalen 12



 

In the view of the CIEH the powers contained in the Bill for Welsh Ministers to 
make subordinate legislation is a sensible and pragmatic step and will allow 
for any necessary amendments or additions to the legislation to be made 
quickly and easily. This will ensure that the legislation will remain relevant, 
credible and fit for purpose in the long term and that it can be tailored as 
and when circumstances require. 
 
7. What are your views on the financial implications of the Bill?  
 
We support the provisions the Bill that allow for food authorities to recover 
the reasonable costs of rerating a premises, and feel that it is fair and 
equitable that businesses wishing to be re-rated should bear at least part of 
the additional cost of this service.  
 
We understand that small businesses may see the cost of rerating as an 
additional burden however we note that it is incumbent on food businesses 
operators to run their businesses in a safe and hygienic manner and that re-
rating will only be required by those who wish to obtain some commercial 
advantage from increasing the rating they have been awarded, and such 
being the case they should be required to pay for that advantage. 
 
In our view the proposed Bill as a piece of public health legislation  will raise 
food hygiene standards and reduce the risk of food poisoning to people 
living in Wales and to visitors to Wales cost of implementing and running the 
scheme is by far outweighed by the benefits to public health that will flow 
from it. 
 
8. Are there any other comments you wish to make about specific 
sections of the Bill? 
 
No. 
 
The CIEH strongly supports the aspirations of the Food Hygiene Rating 
Scheme Bill and urges the Welsh Government to adopt its provisions in the 
interest of public health, consumer safety and fair business practice. 
 
We would be happy to expand upon or clarify any of the foregoing responses 
should it be considered that this would be helpful.  
 
 
 
 
Julie Barratt 
Cyfarwyddwr yng Nghymru 
Sefydliad Siartredig Iechyd yr Amgylchedd 
 
Cwrt Glanllyn 
Parc Llantarnam 
Cwmbran  NP44 3GA 

Tudalen 13



 

Ffôn 01633 865533 Ffacs 01633 485193 
www.cieh-cymruwales.org 
 
Julie Barratt  
Director of CIEH Wales 
Chartered Institute of Environmental Health  
 
Lakeside Court  
Llantarnam Park   
Cwmbran  NP44 3GA 
Telephone 01633 865533 Fax 01633 485 193 
www.cieh-cymruwales.org 
 
 
 

Tudalen 14



Health and Social Care Committee 

Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill 

FHR 22 – Public Health Wales (PHW) 

 
CONSULTATION ON THE FOOD HYGIENE RATING (WALES) BILL  
 
WRITTEN EVIDENCE FROM PUBLIC HEALTH WALES TO THE HEALTH AND SOCIAL 
CARE COMMITTEE OF THE NATIONAL ASSEMBLY FOR WALES AT STAGE 1 OF ITS 
SCRUTINY  
 
Executive Summary 
 
Local Authorities inspect food businesses to ensure that they comply with food hygiene 

regulations. In the UK, the Food Standards Agency (FSA) has rolled-out a “national” 

scheme, implemented in Wales from October 2010.Currently, display of information from the 

food hygiene rating is voluntary – only the highest scoring premises may choose to do so. 

Similar mandatory schemes that operate in other countries have demonstrated benefit to the 

population’s health as measured by reduced levels of serious foodborne illness. 

 
Introduction 
 

Public Health Wales was established as an NHS Trust on 1 October 2009. One of its four 

statutory functions is to provide and manage a range of public health, health protection, 

healthcare improvement, health advisory, child protection and microbiological laboratory 

services and services relating to the surveillance, prevention and control of communicable 

diseases. The Health Protection Division of Public Health Wales works in partnership with 

other parts of the National Health Service, Local Authorities, the Food Standard Agency and 

others to prevent, identify and manage single cases or outbreaks of food borne illness. 

  

Is there a need for a bill to introduce a statutory food hygiene rating scheme in Wales. 

Please explain your answer. 

Yes.  

There is evidence from evaluation of similar schemes operating in other countries (USA, 

Canada, Denmark and Australia) to suggest that the mandatory display of food hygiene 

ratings have a positive effect. There is evidence from the evaluation of the Denmark scheme 

that it helps consumers make informed choices – leading to businesses carrying out 

improvements to avoid a poor score.  An evaluation of the Los Angeles scheme concluded 

that there was a 20% decrease in food related hospitalisations since the introduction of the 

scheme in 1998. 

Public Health Wales supports the compulsory display of food hygiene ratings.  It will be 

important, however, to evaluate the scheme, as implemented in Wales, to ensure that the 

scoring scheme is optimised and the benefits for both consumers and businesses are 

maximised. 

 

Tudalen 15



2 

 

Question 2: How will the proposed Measure change what organisations do currently 

and what impact will such changes have, if any? 

The bill proposes a statutory duty on Local Authorities in Wales to participate in the scheme 

– but it does not change the current system of inspections or the frequency with which they 

are undertaken. If implemented the bill would ensure consistency in approach across Wales 

and increase awareness among consumers.  

With the current voluntary food hygiene rating scheme business may not display their rating 

– if the bill is implemented food businesses in Wales will be required by law to display their 

food hygiene rating in their premises. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 16


	Agenda
	2 Bil Sgorio Hylendid Bwyd (Cymru): Cyfnod 1 - Sesiwn dystiolaeth 3
	3 Bil Sgorio Hylendid Bwyd (Cymru): Cyfnod 1 - Sesiwn dystiolaeth 3
	HSC(4)-22-12(p3) PHW (Saesneg yn unig)


